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To the Honorable Mayor

. \\-'ww.p()wersands&zliivanAczom
City of Woburn, Massachuseits
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller Genera! of the United States, the financial staiements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informaticn of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement
System which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012), and the related notes fo the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Waburn, Massachusetis' basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts' internal control over financial reporting (internal contro!) fo determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpese of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’
internal control.

A deficiency in infernal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
empioyees, ir the normal caurse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financiai statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with gevernance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed fo identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during cur audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matfers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financiai statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
these provisions was noi an objective of our audit, and accerdingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.






Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose,

fﬂw\% by L0

March 28, 2014






Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; 100 Quannapowitt Parkway
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON Suite 101
THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY Wakefield, MA 01880

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 T 781-914-1700

P, 781-914-1701

www. powersandsullivan.com

To the Honorable Mayor
City of Woburn, Massachuseits

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ majer federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. The City
of Woburn, Massachusetis' major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federat programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts' major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An auditincludes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Woburn, Massachusetts' compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit prevides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compiiance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, the City of Woburn, Massachusetis complied, in all materiai respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of ifs major federal programs
for the year ended June 39, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts is responsibte for establishing and maintaining effective

internal control over compliance with the types of comgpliance requirements referred {o above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over






compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal contro! over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal controf over compliance.

A deficiency in internal controf over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify alf deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider {o be maierial weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circuiar A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wobumn, Massachusetts, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013 (except for the Woburn Gontributory Retirement System which is as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012}, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Woburn, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements, We issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2014,
which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federai awards is presented for purposes of additionai analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of managemeni and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used {o prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statemenis as a whole.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal
CFDA
Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures

U.8. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through State Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education:

Non-Cash Assistance (Commedities):
Nationa! School Lunch Program 10.555 5 138,131

Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 112,004
National School Lunch Program 1G.555 664,453

TOTAL AGRICULTURE 914,678

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Passed through State Office for Communitios

and Development:
Community Development Block Grants/Small Cities Program 14,219 7,693

t).S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Passed through the Office of the Massachusetts Executive
Office of Energy and Environmenta! Affairs:
ARRA - Water Quality Management Pianning,
Recovery Act 66.454 38,446

1.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through State Department
of Elementary and Segondary Education:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 470,926
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027 1,238,757
English Language Acquisition Grants 84,3685 34,992
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.387 125,441
School Improvement Grants 84.377 23,300
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Race-to-the-Top

Incentive Grants, Recovery Act 84.395 85,140
Education Jobs Fund 84.410 14,222

Passed through State Depariment
of Early Education and Care;
Special Education Preschool Granis 84173 38,523

TOTAL EDUCATION 2,031,301

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION:

Passed through Massachusetts Rehabiliiation Commission:
Social Security Disability insurance 96.001 530

1).8. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through Massachusetts Emergency
Management Agency.
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters) 897.038 30,645
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 11,250

TOTAL HOMELAND SECURITY 41,795

TOTAL 5 3,035,343

Ses notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Note 1 - Definition of Reporting Entity

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of alt federal financial
assistance programs of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts. All federal financial assistance received directly from-
federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other governmental agencies is included
on the schedule.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, are set forth below:

(a) Basis of Presentation - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the
cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, grant revenues are recognized when received and expenditures when
paid.

{b) School Lunch Program (Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent federal reimbursement for meals
provided during the yesar.

(c) School Lunch Program (Non-Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent the value of donated foods
received during the fiscal year.

Note 3 - Program Clusters
In accordance with Subpart A § 105 of OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non

Profit Organizalions, certain programs have been clustered in determining major programs. The foliowing
represents the clustered programs:

CFDA

Name of Cluster/Program Number
Child Nutrition Cluster

School Breakfast Program 10.553

National School Lunch Program 10.555
Specia!l Education Cluster

Special Education Granis to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027

Special Education Preschool Grants (IDEA Preschool) 84.173
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Fiscal Year Ended June 302013

A. Summary of Auditors’ Results

1. The independent auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinicn on the financial statements of the City
of Woburn, Massachusatts.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the basic financial statements are reported in the Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial siatements of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, which would be required to be reporied in accerdance with Government Auditing
Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reporied in the
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Contro! Over Compliance; and
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federa! award programs for the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, expresses an unmedified opinion.

6. There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs, as defined in Section 520(a) of
OMB A-133, that are required to be reported for the City of Woburn, Massachusetts.

7. The programs tested as major programs include:

CFDA

Program Title Number
School Breakfast Program 10.653

National School Lunch Program 10.585

Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B) 84.027

Special Education Preschool Grants {(IDEA Preschoaol) 84.173

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,0C0.

8. The City of Woburn, Massachusetts was not considered to be a low-risk auditee.

B. Findings and Questioned Costs — Financial Statements Audit

None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audit

None
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Fisca!l Year Ended June 30, 2013

D. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
U.8. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed through the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education
ARRA - Special Education Grants to States, Recovery Act CFDA No: 84.392

2012-1: Condition and Criteria: The City did not comply with time and effort documentation requirements for
employee salaries charged to federal grants. OMB Circular A-87, “Cost Principles for State, Local and
Indian Tribal Governments” requires grantees to maintain documentation of employee time and effort that
has been charged to federal awards. if 100% of an employee's salary is charged to a federal award, a
grant recipient is required to maintain semi-annual certifications stating that 100% of the employee’s time
was spent working on grant activities. If less than 100% of an employee’s salary is charged to a federal
award, a grant recipient is required to maintain monthly personnel activity reports documenting 100% of
the employee’'s time.,

Cause: The City did not ensure that semi-annual certifications or personnel activity reports were
maintained for employee salaries charged to the grant.

Questioned Cost nia

Context: A sample of employees was tested and none cf the employees charged fo the grant had proper
time and effort documentation.

Effect: The City is not in compliance with the grant reguirements and is at risk of charging ineligible
salaries to the grant.

Auditor's Racommendation: We recommend that the City implement procedures to comply with OMB
Circular A-87, "Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments”.

Current Status: The corrective action was taken.
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To the Honorable Mayor
City of Woburn, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements o
www.powersandsuliivan com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Wobumn, Massachusetts,

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System which is as of

and for the year ended December 31, 2012), and the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively

comprise the City of Wobum, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits confained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due te fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit alsc includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In cur opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmentat activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2013 (except for the Woburn
Contributory Retirement System which is of and for the year ended December 31, 2012), and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matiers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financiai statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtainad during our audit of the basic financial statemenis. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

inh accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued cur report dated March 28, 2014, on
our consideration of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal contro! over financial reporting and cn our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reperting and
compiiance and the results of that testing, and nof to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Woburn, Massachusetts' infernal control over financial reporting and
compliance.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts (City), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented in this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are
expressed in whole dollars.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB) is the authoritative standard setting body that provides
guidance on how tc prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Users of these financial statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB to
establish consistent reporting standards for all governments in the United States. This consistent application is the
only way users (including citizens, the media, legisiators and others) can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to others.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City of Woburn exceeded the liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$190.7 miilion (net position).

+  Of this amount, 9% or $16.6 miliicn is unrestricted and may be used to meet the government's on-going
obligations fo citizens and creditors.

= Atthe close of the current fiscal year, the City's general fund reported an ending fund balance of $33.9
million. Total fund balance represents 27% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City’s total debt (short-term and long-term combined) decreased by $7.5 million during the fiscal year.

« The City's net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability increased by $9.7 mitlion and totaled $37.2
million at fiscal year-end.

¢ The City issued $12.6 million of General Obligation Refunding Bonds on March 21, 2013. This advanced
refunding will reduce total debt service payments by $1.5 million.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Woburn's basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the City as a whole. The fund financial
statements focus on the individual components of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements. Both presentations (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the City’s accountability. An
additional part of the basic financial statements are the notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other required supplementary information in addition tc the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner simifar o private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on ali assets and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of

resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of aclivities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underiying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of refated cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reporied in this
statement for some items that will only resuit in cash flows in future fiscal periods (2.g., uncoliected taxes and
eamed but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by faxes and
infergovernmental revenues {governmental activities) from other funciions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, human services, culture and
recreation, and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Woburn itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public employee retirement system for which the City of Woburn is
financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately within the fiduciary
fund staiements.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial siatements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial staterments, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to comgpare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmentai fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund siatement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Woburn adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City accounts for its water and sewer aclivities as an enterprise fund.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accouniing used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional infermation that is essentiat to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financia! position. The
City of Woburn's total assets exceeded total Labilities by $180.7 mitlion at the close of fiscal 2013.

Net position of $158.2 million (83%) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, land improvements,
buildings, vehicles, machinery and equipment, building improvements, and infrastructure), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital asseis to provide services fo
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital
assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to fiquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the governmental net position, $15 million (8%), represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted nef pesition $16.6 million
(9%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors,

Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the City of Weburn is able to report positive balances in two out of three
categories of net position for the governmental activities and all three categories, both for the City as a whole, as
wel as for its separate business-fype activities.

The governmental and business-type activities of the City are presented below.

Governmental Activities

The City of Woburn’s assets exceeded liabilities for governments! activities by $150.6 million at the close of fiscal
2013,

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
Assets:
CUrment 88888, e $ 625771268 $ 62386918
Noncurrent assets (excluding capital). ... 1,027.618 1,031,087
Capital assets not being depreciated. .. e 22,715,253 22,088,936
Capital assets, net of accumulated deprema’uon 159,535,296 159,036,765
e ) 2 L 13T 245,855,293 244,523,707
Liabilities: .
Current liabilities (exctuding debt).............cciiiiiiiiiin 6,555 276 5,765,504
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)..........oooo e, 41,675,140 32,067,680
Current debt. . 3,319,538 5,866,912
Noncurrentdebi. ... .o 43 683,685 47 567,224
Total labilites. i e e e 95,233,640 91,267,410
Net Position:
Netinvestmentin capitalassets.......................... 136,675,802 130,266,848
ReSINC B . e 14,986,703 16,109,173
Unrestricted. .. {1,040,852) 8,880,276
Total net POSIHION....cvi i iiniin e e s r e r e e $ 150,621,653 $ 153,256,297
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Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

PI'OQ ram revenues:

Charges for ServiCes. ... $ 5774800 § 6,182,727
Operating grants and contributions..............cocii 27,395,291 25,771,263
Capital grants and contributions. ..............cooiii 2,993,697 4,830,159
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
netof tax refunds payable.............. . 86,893,535 83,089,900
= 1 oIS 894,259 1,760,970
Motor vehicle exXCiSe taXES. ..ot 5,420,734 4,835,802
Hotel/Motel tax. ... 2,367,457 2,247614
Meais tax... 892 407 870,389
Penalﬂesand mterestontaxes 1,080,186 718,358
Nonrestricted grants... 5,533,108 5,826,148
Unrestricted lnvestment income.. T 755,998 1,690,423
Mlscelaneous 72,375 -
TOLa] OV EIUES .ot eve it iiere e eircvsinrtn e srvnssaraerararararcasrsnnnns 140,390,463 137,933,853
Expenses:
General QoVerNMENT ..o e e 5,837,324 6,318,446
Public safely. ... o 28,172,168 26,486,489
Education. . ... 92,615,488 80,107,703
P U WK S .ot e e e 11,800,086 11,638,883
HUM M SV TS .. ottt et e e e e et e e e e e 1,790,945 1,873,076
Culfure and recrealion. .. .o v e e e 2,725,704 2,831,109
interest... 1,688,884 1,694,176
Total expenses ........................................................... 144,530,609 140,749,882
Increase in net position before transfers.......oovvineerincennnn {4,140,148) {2,816,029)
B -T2 =T TP PN 1,505,502 765,757
Change in net posSitioN. ...ocoucrci i {2,634,644) (2,080,272)
Net position at beginning of the year.......co.civiiiiniieninn 153,256,297 155,308,569
Net position atend of the year......ooic i, $ 150,621,653 $ 153,256,297

Governmental expenses totaled $144.5 million of which $36.2 million (25%) was directly supported by program
revenues consisting of charges for services, operating and capital granis and contributions. General revenues
totaled $104.2 millicn, primarily coming from property taxes, motor vehicle excise taxes, hotel/motel taxes and

non-restricted state aid.

Governmental net position decreased by $2.6 million during the current fiscal year. The primary components of
this decrease included a $2.7 million increase in the OPERB liability that was offset by the recognition of $3 million

of capital grants and positive general fund budgetary resuilts totaling $3.6 million.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 7

Basic Financial Statements



Business-type Activities
For the City’s business-type activities, assefs exceeded liabilities by $40.1 million at the close of fiscal 2013,

Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012

Assets:
Currentassets........ocov i 8 22881112 § 22,485,407
Noncurrent assets {excluding capital)................................ 695,160 772,630
Capital assets not being depreciated...................o 415,240 332,240
Capial assets, net of accumulated depreciation..................... 50,019,264 48,785,862
Total ASSeLS. i e e s 74,110,776 73,346,139
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debty........o 912,080 402,168
Noncurrent lighilities (excluding debt)................................. 394,466 374,742
Current debt. e 2,563,879 6,449,518
Noncurrentdebt... ... 30,142,272 27,307,922
Total Habilities. ..o e e e eaas 34,012,707 34,534,350
Net Position:
Netinvestmentincapital assats...........oooocc i, 22,492,051 22,078,105
Unrestricted. ... 17,606,018 16,733,684
Total net PoSHION...cc.ccv i e $ 40,098,069 $ 38,811,789
Program revenues:
Charges for ServiCes......oo i L $ 17,740,228 $ 17,778,948
Operating grants and contributions................................. 05,646 111,051
Capital grants and contributions... ... 468,133 -

General Revenues:

Unrestricted investmentincome. ..., - 287
TOtal rEVERLES. .o vvvireiieireiie s rn st e cu st s s s et rurans 18,304,008 17,890,266
Expenses:

MV ater aNd SEWET. . 15,612,226 15,542 585
Increase in net position before transfers......cocvviicicriiercinnen, 2,791,782 2,347,671
=10 253 (=) £ {1,505,502) (765,757)
Change in net position. .c..occvcviiiicr e e e 1,286,280 1,581,914
Net position at beginning of the year.........ccccc.vviiiinennvne, 38,811,789 37,229,875
Net position at end of the year.........coviiiiicr e ceecv e $ 40,098,069 $ 38,811,789

Business-type net position of $22.5 million (66%) represents the net investment in capital assets while $17.6
ritlion {(44%;) is unrestricted.

The water and sewer enterprise fund net position increased by $1.3 million in the current fisca! year. This

increase is primarily due to a $684,000 excess of debt principal payments, raised in the rates, over depreciation
expense, and unexpended capital appropriations.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-refated legal
reguirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a govemment’s net resources available
far spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $50.7
million. This was comprised of the general fund, Goodyear School fund, and nonmajor fund balances totaling
$33.9 rifiion, $847,000, and $15.9 million, respectively.

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $26 million, while total fund balance was $33.9 million. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 21% of the total general fund expenditures, white total fund
balance represents 27% of that same amount. Committed fund balance totals $6 million and consists of the
affordable housing stabilization fund totaling $2.8 millicn and unexpended capital articles totaling $3.2 million that
were carried forward to the subsequent fiscal year. Assigned fund balance totals $2 million and consists of
unexpended appropriations that were encumbered to be expended in the subsequent fiscal year.

The general fund increased by $3.5 million, which is due to befter than expected revenue collections.

The State highway grants fund recognized $1.4 miftion of capital grant revenue and incurred $1.4 million of read
improvement costs.

The Goodyear School fund incurred $170,000 of additional school construction costs in fiscal 2013,
General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The $4.9 million (4%) increase between the original budget and the final amended budget was primarily due to
increases in appropriations for public safely and debt service,

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. In conjunction with the annual operating budget, the City annually prepares a capital budget for

the upcoming fiscal year and a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that is used as a guide for future capital
expenditures,

The City's net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2013,
amounts o $232.7 million {net of accumulated depreciation}. This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and
squipment and infrastructure.

The total current year additions to the governmental investment in capital assets were $4.9 million. Construction

in progress of $646,000 relates to ongoing sireet construction and paving; Land improvement additions of $1.6
miflion relate to the ongoing Whispering Hill Park project; Machinery and equipment additions of §1.3 million relate
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to the installation of a new public safety dispatch system; and infrastructure additions of $869,000 relate to street
construction and repaving. The remaining additions relate fo building improvements and vehicle purchases.

The $1.8 million in water and sewer additions are mainly attributable to infrastructure improvements that include
the water treatment plant and water tank construction projects.

Debt Administration. The City maintains a Moody's bond rating of Aa2. The City continues to maintain strong
market access for both note and bond sales.

Outstanding long-term debt of the general government totaled $47 million, of which $36.9 miltion is related to
school projects and $10.1 million relates to various other capital projects.

In order to take advantage of favorable interest rates, the City issued $12,610,000 of General Obligation
Refunding Bonds on March 21, 2013. $15,000,000 of general cbligation bonds were advance refunded by
placing the proceeds of the refunding bonds and $2,793,361 of available funds in an irrevocable trust to provide
for all future debi service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be
defeased and the lability has been removed from the statement of net position. The reacquisition price exceeded
the net carrying amount of the old debt by $1,899,000. This advance refunding was undertaken o reduce total
debt service payments by $1,517,000 and resulted in an economic gain of $862,000. At June 30, 2013,
$16,000,000 of bonds outstanding from the advance refunding is considered defeased.

The water and sewer enterprise fund has $32.7 million of outstanding long-term debt, which is fully supported by
rates and does not rely on a general fund subsidy.

Flease refer to the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the major capitat and debt activity.
Reguests for Information

This financial report is designed tc provide a general overview of the City of Woburn's finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Auditor, City Offices, 10 Common
Btreet, Woburn, Massachusetts 01801.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Primary Government

Governmentai Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents.................coeveeeee . 8 40,327,456 3 13,684,828 § 54,012,282
Investments.. 11,874,704 - 11,874,704
Receivables, net of a]\owance for uncoliectib
Real estate and personal property taxes..,‘u..“,.,‘. 837,591 - 837,591
Tax and utility iens.. . 2,927,496 242,164 3,169,660
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 737,193 - 737,193
User fees. . - 8,357,473 8,357,473
Departmentai and cther 1,264,044 - 1,264,044
Intergovemmental‘,,,,,.H‘,.‘,,,A.M...A,,.A..‘...W.‘,.. 4,608,642 596,649 5,305,291
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate tax deferrals ... 308,881 - 309,981
Intergovernmental... ... - 695,160 595,180
Tax foreclosures... 717,627 - 717827
Capital assets not beang depremated 22,715,253 415,240 23,130,493
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreotat:on ......... 158,535,298 50,018,264 208,554,560
TOTAL ASSETS i e 245,855,203 74,110,776 319,966 068
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable... ... ... 1,287,523 496,398 1,783,824
Accrued payroll 713,570 - 713,570
Tax refunds payable.......oi o e 2,017,000 - 2,017,000
Accrued irterest.. . 433,593 357,682 791,285
Payrof withholdings. .. ..o 8,784 - 8,794
Abandoned property... 139,796 - 139,786
Compensated absences 1,855,000 58,000 2,013,000
Unamartized premiums on nonds payabE " 5,172 5,172
Bonds payabte 3,319,538 2,558,707 5,878,245
NONCURRENT:
Compensated absences.. 4.742,000 174,000 4,918,008
Other postemploymeant beneﬂts 36,833,140 220,456 37,153,608
Unamertized premiums on bonds payab!e e - 18,778 18,778
Bonds payable 43,683 686 30,123,494 73,807,180
TOTAL LIABIITIES. .. §5,233,640 34,012,707 129,246,347
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets............ 136,675,802 22,492 051 159 167,953
Restricted for
Debisarvice.. .. 1,008,729 - 1,006,729
Permanent funds:
Expendable..... .. 6,552,848 - 6,552,848
Nonexpendable... 2,542 085 - 2,542 085
'''' Gifts and grantS... ..o e 4 885,041 - 4,885,041
Unrestricted. ... e {1,040,952) 17,606,018 18,565,066
TOTALNETPOSITION. ... . B 150,621,653 & 40,098,069 $ 190,719,722

See notes to basic financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Program Revenuss

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net {Expense)
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government..............., % 5837324 3 576,927 § 301,804 % 5589 % (4,953,004}
Publicsafety............ocoenv 28,172,198 2,745,219 1,849,717 - (23,577,262)
Education.........coo.oooeo i 092,615,488 2,170,071 24,829,745 267,159 (65,348,513)
Publicworks.........ociis 14,800,066 160,358 183,834 2,220,849 (9.205,028)
Human senices..........oocevee. 1,790,845 83,141 56,630 - (1,851,174)
Culture and recreation.............. 2725704 9,087 173,661 500,000 (2,043,0586)
Inferest,.. ... 1,588,884 - - - (1,588,884)
Total Governmental Activities. .. 144,530,609 5,774,800 27,395,291 993,607 1 (108/366,921)
Business-Type Activities:
Waterand Sewer..................... 15,512,228 17,740,229 95,648 468,133 2,791,782
Total Primary Government...... $ 160,042,835 $ 23515029 $ 27490937 $ 3,461,730 105,575,139)
See notes to basic financial statements. {Continued)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Changes in net position: e e .
Net (expense) revenue from previous page............. $° {108,366,921) $
General revenuss:

Real estate and personal property taxes,

$__(105,575,139)

net of tax refunds payable............ 86,893,535 - 86,893,535
TaX NS o 894,259 - 894,259
Motor vehicle excise taxes.............oooi il 5,420,734 - 5,420,734
Hotel/motel tax. ... 2,367 457 - 2,367,457
Mealstax. . ... 892 407 - 892,407
Penalties and interestontaxes..............cceeiv v 1,090,188 - 1,090,186
Grants and contributions not restricted tc

specific programs...........oo 5,533,108 - 5,633,108
Unirestricted investment income.................. e 755,898 “ 755,908
Gain on sale of capital assets......................... 306,715 - 308,715
Miscellaneous.. ..., 72,376 - 72,378
Transfars, Net ... .. . s 1,605,502 (1,505,502) -
Total general revenues and transfers..................... 105,732,277 {1,505,502) 104,226,775
Change innetposition...........oo.c . (2,634,644) 1,286,280 (1,348,364)

Net Position;
Beginningofyear................... 153,256,287 38,811,789 192,068,088
End of year. ..o $ 150,621653 § 400080680 % 180,718,722
See notes to basic financial statements. (Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2013

State Nonmajor Total
Highway Goodyear Governmental Governmental
ASSETS General Grants Schoot Funds Funds
Cash and cash eguivalents........................... $ 30,824,590 3 - $ 154,828 $ 9,348,038 $ 40,327 458
Investments. ... 6,069,757 = - 5,804,947 11,874,704
Receivables, net of unceoliectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes 837,591 - - - 837,691
Real estate tax deferrals........ocooooo v e 309,991 - - - 309,981
TaxBens. ..., 2,827.496 - - - 2,927,496
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.......... 737,193 - - - 737,183
Departmental and other.......................... 18,201 - - 1,245,843 1,264,044
Intergovernmental................. - 2,823,171 591,924 893,547 4,608,642
Tax foreclosUres. ... e 717,627 - - - 717,827
Due from other funds..............ocee 10,692 - - - 10,692
TOTALASSETS. e, 42 453 138 2,923,171 846,752 17,392,375 63,615,438
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable................... 505,168 548,317 - 136,038 1,287,523
Accrued payrollo. ... 713,570 - - - 713,570
Tax refunds payable................o 2,017,000 - - - 2,017,000
Payrali withholdings.............ooc 8,794 - - - 8,794
Abandoned property........o o, 139,796 - - - 139,796
Deferred reventes................o s 5,132,092 2,266,182 - 1,342,413 8,740,667
Duefootherfunds............ooooiee - 10,692 - - 10,692
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..., 8,516,420 2,823 171 - 1,478,451 12,818,042
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable.................coci o, - - - 2,542 085 2,542,085
Restricted.............ooo.o - " 846,752 13,717,017 14,563,769
Committed..............cocooiie 5,983,007 - - - 5,983,007
Assigned..........o 2,001,447 - - . 2,001,447
Unassigned................o 25,852,264 - . {345,178) 25,607,086
TOTAL FUND BALANCES................cov 33,936,718 - 846,752 15,813,924 50,697,304
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. .. $ 42453,138 § 2,823 171 § 848,752 $ 17,392,375 $ 63615436

See notes to basic financial statements,
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL. FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2013

Total governmental fund DAENCES. . ...t $ 50,697,394

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are notreported inthe funds.. . e 182,250,548

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-pariod
expenditures and, thereforg, are deferredinthefunds............o s 8,740,667

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported untifdue....................o (433,583)

Leng-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:

BONUS DAYADIE. ... oot e e e (47,003,224)
COMPEnsated @DBENCES. .. .o ooo\i e e re oo ettt e e (6,897,000}
Other postemploymeant benefits... ... (36,233,140)

Net effect of reperting long-term liabilities................. (90,833,364}

Net position of governmental activiies ... ... $ 150,821,653

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

State Debt Nonmajor Total
Highway Goodyear Service Govermnmental Governmental
General Grants School Refunding Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Real estate and personat property taxes,
netoftaxrefunds............ $ 87,825 558 $ - $ - 3 - 3 - § 87,825 559
Taxhens......oooooeinnns 1,238,047 - - - - 1,236,047
Maotor vehicle excise taxes. ..o 5,042,688 - - . - 5,042,688
Hotelimoteltax...........oocoi 2,367,457 - - - - 2367 457
Meals 18X 892,407 - - - - 892,407
Penatties and interest on taxes. 1,090,186 - - - - 1,080,186
infergovernmental. ... 25,811,709 1,438,946 - - 5,785,219 33,035,874
Departmerntal andother....................ccol. 2,020847 - - - 5 647,197 7,667,844
Comtributions... ..o 70,041 - - - 39,550 109,591
investment iNCOMEa..........oiin 174,698 - - - 539,763 714,461
TOTALREVENUES...........o.o, 126,531 438 1,438,946 - - 12,011,729 139,882,114
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government................cooeveeeeeenn.. 3,619,176 - - 204,901 188,956 3,813,033
Public safety.............., 16,521,773 - - - 2,411,774 16,633,547
Education................... 49,878,636 - 169,563 - 7,031,980 57,180,179
Publicworks..........o 7,892,638 1,438,945 - - 266,042 8,607 626
Human services. ..., 1,204.648 - - - 143,225 1,437,871
Cuiture and recreation....o..o.vv. il 1,792,390 - - - 1,136,278 2,828,668
Pension benefits..... 17,627,476 - - - - 17,627,476
Employee benefits....... 17,728,332 - - . - 17,728,332
State and county charges... ... 3,247,720 - - - - 3,247,720
Capital cutlay..........cooov 2.097 862 - “ - - 2,087,662
Debt service:
PHNCIDa 3,166,912 - - . - 3,168,912
IBrest.. . 1,291,322 - - - - 1,281,322
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... 126,258,683 1,438,848 169,563 204,901 10,878,255 138,950,348
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES. .............. 272,756 - (169,563} {204,901) 1,133,474 1,031,766
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds frombonds... ... - - - - 1,826,000 1,826,000
Proceeds from refunding bonds..................... - - - 12,610,000 - 12,610,000
Premiurn from issuance of refunding bonds. ... - - - 1,700,473 - 1,700,473
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent,...... (340,728) - - {14,105,572) (2,453,236} {16,898,833)
Sale of capital assets..........ooooiviivi 306,715 - - - ~ 306,715
Transfars N 5,466,224 - - - 2,204,933 7,671,157
Transfers oUto. ... (2,204,833) - - - (3,860,722} {5,165 655}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES).........ooo.on, 3,227,881 - - 204 801 (2,383,025} 1,049,757
NET CHANGE N FUND BALANCES................ 3,500,637 - {169,583) - (1,249,551) 2,081,523
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR ..o 30,436,081 - 1,016,315 ~ 17,183,478 48,618,871
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.. ... s, $33,938718 3 - § 848752 $ - $ 15,913,924 $ 50,607,384

See notes Lo basic financial statements,
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmentat funds........ i

Gavernmenta! funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated usefu! lives and reported as depreciation expense,

Camial GUAY .. e e e e
DG At ON BRI BN S . .. . i et e e e e

Net effect of reporting capital assets. ...

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not previde current financial
resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounis receivable {i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents
the net change in defermed revenue. ... ...

The issuance of long-term debt {e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmentat funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmenta! funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities,

Praceeds from DORAS. .. ..o
Proceeds from refunding bonds... ..
Premium from {ssuance of Bonds........ e
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent... ...
Debt service principal BaymentS. .
Loss on refunding. ..o e

Net effect of reporting long-termdebt. ...
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmentat funds.
Net change in compensated absences acorual.........oi o
Net change in accrued interest on long-termdebt.. ...
Net change in other pestemployment benefit......

Net effect of recording long-term liahilities...........ooo

Change in net position of governmental activities.............c

See notes to basic financial statements.
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$  2,081.523
4,913,182
(3,768,334)
1,144,848
101,634
(1,828,000
(12,610,000
(1,700,473)
16,898,933
3,166,912
(198,458)
3,730,914
90,000
(99,103)
(9,684,460)
{9,693,563)
$  (2,834,644)
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2613

Business-type
Activities -
Entarprise Funds

Water and Sewer

ASSETS

CURRENT:
Cashandcashequivalents.............cocoo e B 13,684,626
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

L T O P 242 164

T fEEs L e 8,357,473

INEIGOVEIRIMENTAL.. . ... e e e ee e s 696,649

Total current assels. ... e 22,981,112
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of aliowance for uncoliectibies:

Intergovemmental . e 695,160
Capital assets not being depreciated...............oo i - 415,240
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation..........oo oo 50,019,264

Total NonCUment 888818, e e 51,129,664
T AL A SR T G e 74,110,776
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
WV arrants PaYabDIR. ... e e 496,308
Accruad Interest. . . 357,692
Compensated BDSENICES. .. .o e e e e e e 58,000
Unamortized premiums on bonds and notes payable ... 5172
Bongs Dayabie. . o e e e 2,558,707
Total current Habitities. ... ... 3,475,980
NONCURRENT:
Compensated absENtRS ... i s 174,000
Other postemployment benefits. ... 220,466
Unamortized premiums on honds and notes pavable......o.oooviniinnnn 18,778
Bonds payable. ... 30,123,494
Tatal noncurrent Habiliies. ... e 30,538,738
O AL LIAB LT IS . e e, 34,012,707

NET POSITION

Netinvestment in capital 858618, ... 22,492 051
UNrest It e 17,606,018
TOTALNET POSITION ..o e e $ 40,098,069

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services .............oocoo it $ 18,368,654
Y Bems. 1,371,575
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ... 17,740,229
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration ... 1,664,453
MV R A ABSEE SN, .t e e 11,495,586
DERreCialioN. .. e 1,515,655
Employee benefits ... 21,724
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .. ... 14,697,418
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). ..o e e 3,042,811
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES);
IMErESt BXPENSE. o o (814,808)
Intergovernmental......... 563,779

TOTAL NONOPERATING

REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET ... oooeosoe oo (251,029)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
TRANSFERS .. oo oo, 2,791,782
TRANSFERS:
Transfers QUL .o e (1,505,502)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. .-~ oooooo oo 1,286,280
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ........oooocoosooeoreee 38,811,789

NET POSITIONATEND OF YEAR ..., $ 40,098,069

See notes to basic financial statements,
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers and USerS... ..o e $ 18,693,080
Payments 10 VENAOIS. .. ..o e e {(11.867,112)
Payments 10 emploYEES . .. s (722,168}
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .. ... 6,003,810

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TraNSTEIS OUL . e e {1,505,502)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from the issuance of bands and NOtES ... e et e 5,080,915
Capital grants reCeIVEU.........oiiii e 468,133
Acquisition and construction of capital @ssefs...........c e (1,832,057
Principal payments on bonds and notes. ... .o (8,371,439}
BT B DB NS i o e s e (687,733)
NET CAGH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES............oooovrvn {3,342,181)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ..., 1,156,127
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ... ... ... 12,528,699
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ..ot o i $ 13,684,826

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (JOBS). ... i 5 3,042,811
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:

e PTECIEEON .« ottt ettt e s et e 1,615,655
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Y NS, e e e e e (16,100}
Sy fOBS . e 968,961
Warrants payable. . 472,759
Accrued compensated AlBBNCES. ... it it s e s (2,000}
Other postemployment benefls. ..o e 21,724
Total adJUSIMEIES ... 2,960,889
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..o e, $ 5,003,810

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Intergovernmental SUDSIAY. ... $ 167,991

See notes to basic financial statements,
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITICON

JUNE 30, 2013

Pension
Trust Fund Private
(as of December Purpose Agency
31, 2012} Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents.............o . $ 1,862,132 & 76,815 % 378,269
VS IS, e 107,175,398 - -
Interest and dividends..............c 99,270 - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncoilectibles:
Intergovernmental.............cc 4,485,219 - -
TOT AL AS ST . i s 113,622,019 ' 76,815 378,269

LIABILITIES

Warrants pavable.........o e 4912771 - 7,544
Liabilities due depositors...........o P - - 370,725

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..o 4,912,771 - 378,269

NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes... $ 108,709,248 $ 76,815 § -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Pension
Trust Fund Private
{as of December Purpose
31, 2012) Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
B M DOy 3 5,089,320 3% -
EMPIOYEE. e 2,652,178 -
Total contributions. 7,741,498 -
Net investment income {loss):
Net change in fair value of investments....................cooeoiiiins 10,677,841 -
B Sl 2,494 665 43
Total investment income {l08S).......ccoooooiiiiii 13,172,606 43
Less: Investmentexpense............ooiiiii i {731,503} -
Net investment income (loss)........... 12,441,003 43
Intergovernmental... ... 218,604 -
Transfers from other systems..........oo oo e 182,189 -
TOTAL ADDITIONS ... 20,583,204 43
DEDUCTIONS.
Administration. ... 362,696 -
Transfersto othersystems...........ooo i 273,723 -
Retirement benefits and refunds... ... 10,388,586 -
Educational scholarships...........ocoo i - 180
TOTALDEDUCTIONS .. 11,025,015 190
CHANGE INNET POSITION ... ... 9,558,279 (147)
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR... ... oo 99,150,969 75,962
NET POSITIONATEND OFYEAR ...........ccooiiii. 8 108,708,248 § 76,815

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY GF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts {City) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described
herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The City is @ municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Mayor and City Council (Council}.

For financial reporting purposes, the City has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The City has also considered all potential compoenent units for which it is financially accountable
as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the basic financial statements fo be misleading or incomplete. As required by GAAP,
these basic financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component units. One entity
has been included as a component unit in the reporting entity, because of the significance of its operational and/or
financiai relationship.

Component Unit Presented as a Fiduciary Fund — The following component unit is presented as a Fiduciary Fund

of the primary government due to the nature and significance of relationship between the City and the component
unit.

The Woburn Contributory Retirement System (System) was established to provide refirement benefiis to
City empioyees, the Woburn Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is
governed by a five-member board comprised of the City Auditor (ex-officio), two members elected by the
System’s participanis, one member appointed by the Mayor and one member appointed by the Board
members. The System is presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension
trust fund in the fiduciary fund financial statementis.

The System did not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available un-
audited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Cormmonwealth of Massachusetts’
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission {(PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at 10 Common Street, Woburn, Massachusetts 01801.

B. Governmeni-Wide and Fund Financial Statemenis

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net
position) report information on ali of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units. Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-fype activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2043

Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reporied as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column,

Major fFund Criteria

Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:

» If the total assets, jiabitities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all
funds of that category or type (total governmental or total enterprise funds), and

o [fthe total assets, iabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental

and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly
significant to the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statemenis

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accruai basis of accounting. Under this methed, revenues are recordaed when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiabie with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the foliowing:

¢« Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

s Grants and contributions restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particutar function or
segment.

e Grants and contributions restricted to meeting the capital requirements of g particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fisca! Year Ended June 30, 2013

Far the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been remeoved from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the affect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as
the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions
affected.

fFund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available}. Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and ceriain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expeacted to be
liguidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
fiscal year-end. Investment income is susceptibie to accrual. Other receipts and {ax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when tha qualifying expenditures are incurred and aif other
grant requiremenis are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. K is used to account for ali financial resources, except those that
are required o be acceunted for in another fund. Stabilization fund is also classified as part of the general fund.

The State highway grants fund is used to account for and report costs incurred with the construction and
reconstruction of City owned roadways. Costs charged to the fund are subject {o reimbursement by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

The Goodyear School fund is used to account for financial resources associated with the construction of the new
Goodyear Elementary School.

The non-major governmental funds consist of special revenue, debt service, capital project and permanent funds
that are aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds
financial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. Debt service funds should be used to report resources if iegaily
mandated. Financial rescurces that are being accumulated for principal and interest maturing in future years also
should be reported in debt service funds.

City of Woburn, Massachusefis 27 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, commitied, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outiays, including the acquisition or construction of capitai facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liahilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses, ‘

The City's proprietary funds include the water and sewer enterprise fund which is used to account for the water
and sewer activities.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the fiow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis cf accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The private-purpose frust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
pension trust fund or permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.

D, Cash and Investrents

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.

E. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Stataments

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmeni-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes, Tax Liens and Tax Foreclosures

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1* and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are
not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables
in the fiscal year of the levy.

Real estate tax liens are imposed in October of each fiscal year on delinquent properties and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year they are processed. Real estate tax liens may be subject to foreclosure if the tax
fiens are not paid in accordance with the period required by the law (M.G.L. Ch.60, §50). Foreclosure
proceedings are processed by the Treasurer or other tax lien custodian. Foreclosed properties can then be sold
through advertised pubfic auction or hald for use by the City.

Rea! estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% coliectible. Accordingly,
an aliowance for uncollectibles is net reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account anaiysis.

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicie registered and are recorded as receivables in
the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and
the fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of
value. :

The allowance for uncoliectibles is estimated based on historical frends and specific account analysis.

Water and Sewer User Fees

User fees for residential and small commercial users are levied semi-annually while the top 20 commercial users
are levied monthly. Residential user fees are based on flat rates while commercial user fees are based on
individuat meter readings. All user fees are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective
due date. Unbilled user fees are estimated at year-end and are recorded as revenue in the current period. Water
and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and included as a lien on the property owner's tax bil,
Water and sewer fees and liens are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy.

Since the receivables are secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% collectible and
therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of ambulance charges and are recorded as receivables in
the fiscal year accrued. The aliowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific
account analysis.

Intergovernmental
Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For

non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as al! eligibility requirements imposed by the
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provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% coilectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
F. Inventories
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total fo the
government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

G, Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Froprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, buiiding improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment, and infrasiruciure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statements, and the
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical
cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. Except for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements, construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of state recommended capitalization thresholds are capitalized at
the date of acquisition cr construction, respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type {in years)
Land improvements................................ 20
Bulldings. ..o 40
Building improvements..............ooo e, 20
Vehicles.....oooo 5-10
Machinery and equipment........................ 5-10
fnfrastructure..................... 10-40

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materiaily extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expendifures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.
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H. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Posilion)

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources, This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will nof be recognized as an outflow of
resources {expense/expenditure) until then. The City did not have any items that gualify for reporting in this
category.

In addition to lizbilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenug) until that time. The City did not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

|_Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/selier nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances oustanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as “internal
balances.”

Fund Financial Statements
Transactions of a buyer/selier nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “"Due from other funds”

or “Due fo other funds” on the balance sheet,

J. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reporied as transfers in and transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net position. Any residual bafances cutstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as "Transfers, net.”

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
fransfers in and transfers out.
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K. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not
meet the available criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the
government-wide {(full accrual) financial statements.

L. Net position and Fund Equity

Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements (Nef position)

Net position reported as "net investment in capital assets” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of cutstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of
capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets,

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts that are not availabie for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:

‘Debt service” represents amounts used to reduce the amount of tax levy raised to pay principal and interest on
iong-term debt

‘Permanent funds - expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor
resiricted trusts. The restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the realized
investment earnings.

‘Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmentat programs.

“Gifts and granis” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties and consists primarily of state and
federal grants.

Sometimes the City will fund outiays for a particular purpose from both restricted {e.g., restricted bond ar grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net positien and
unrastricted — net position in the governmeni-wide and proprigtary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. it is the City's policy to
consider restricted — net position 1o have heen depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassignad
based an the extent to which the government is bound o honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund baiance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or faws or reguiations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest leve! of decision-making authority. A vote of the City
Councit is the highest level of decision making authority that can commit funds for a specific purpose. Once
voted, the limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended purpose or a
vate is taken o rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund batance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither resiricted nor committed.

“Unassigned” fund balance inciudes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The City's spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by commitied, assigned and
unassigned fund batance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.

M. Long-term debt

Governmenit-Wide and Proprietary Fuhd Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds iong-term debt is reported as other financing sources, Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiumns are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

N. Investment lncome

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from maior and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assignad to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetis General Law (MGL).

Investment income derived from the proprietary funds is retained by the proprietary funds.

0. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.
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Government-Wide and Propristary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reporied as expenditures and fund liabilities.

P. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reporied amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

Q. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Staterments

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

R. Appropriation and Fund Deficits

Severai individual fund deficits exist at June 30, 2013 in the special revenue and capital project funds. These
deficits will be funded by grants, bond proceeds, departmental revenues and available fund balance. Actual
expenditures and encumbrances exceeded appropriations for snow and ice and state and county charges. These
over-expenditures will be funded by the fiscal 2014 tax rate.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Short-term Investments.” The deposits and investments of
the trust funds are held separately from those of other funds.

Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentatities, certificates
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment
Pool (Pool}. The Treasurer may alsc invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans,
which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth. In addition,
there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and investments.
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The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves
as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares.

The System participates in the Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT}, which meets the criteria of an external
investment pool. PRIT is administered by the Pension Reserves Investment Management Board, which was
established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts who serves as Trustee. The fair value of
the position in the PRIT is the same as the value of the PRIT shares.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial risk. At fiscal year-end, the carrying amount
of deposits totaled $36,414,333 and the bank balance totaled $38,229,254. Of the bank balance, $2,326,435 was
covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $2,113,419 was covered by Depositors Insurance Fund, $33,019,517
was collateralized and $769,883 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

At December 31, 2012, the carrying amount of deposits for the System totaled $388,127 and the bank balance
totaled $582,780. All of the bank balance was covered by Federal Depository Insurance.

Custodial Credit Risk — Invesimenis

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the City will not be abie to
recover the vaiue of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. Of the
investments of $2,527,177 in government sponsored enterprises, $4,808,814 in corporate bonds and $4,538,713
in equity securities, the government has custodial credit risk exposure totaling $11,874,704 because the related
securities are uninsured, unregistered and held by the counterparty. The City does not have an investment policy
for custodial credit risk.

Of the investments of $2,662,769 in government agencies, $2,227,052 in government sponsored enterprises,
$6,385,259 in corporate bonds and $18,872,123 in equity securities, the System has custodial credit risk
exposure totaling $30,137,203 because the related securities are uninsured, unregistered and held by the
counterparty. The System does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The City and the System do not have a formal poticy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

The City participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with combined
average maturities of approximately 3 months.

The System participates in PRIT. The effective weighted duration rate for PRIT investments ranged from .08 to
10.37 years.
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As of June 30, 2013, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in ysars)

More
Investment Type Fair Value 1t05 6 to 10 Than 10
Debt Securities
Government Sponsored
Enterprises ... 2,827 177 1,120,050 78,346 1,328,781
Corporate Bonds................ooo. 4,808,814 1,921,673 1,803,721 1,083,420
Total Debt Securities................... 7,335,991 & 3,041,723 &% 1882067 $§ 2412201
Other Investmenis
Equity Securities...........coov 4,638,713
Money Market Mutual Funds...... .. 16,117,082
MMDT. 1,835,951
Total Investments....................... 3 29,827,737
As of December 31, 2012, the System had the following investments and maturities:
Investment Maturities {in years)
lLess More
Investment Type Fair Value Than 1 1105 61010 Than 10
Deht Securities
Government Agencies................ $ 2,552,768 % - 3 - 8 217474 $ 2335205
Government Sponscred
Enterprises.....oooveivivinnneninnnn, 2,227,052 - - 775,392 1,451,660
Corporate Bonds....o..ooooeeee e, 6,385,259 177,287 772,685 1,725,439 3,709,848
Bond Mutual Funds............cccoens 9,210,178 - - 9,210,178 ~
Total Debt Securities.......oooo....... 20375258 % 177,287 % 772685 3 11928483 3% 7496803
Other Investments
Equity Securities.........cccoevveeen, 18,972,123
Equity Mutual Funds...................0 19,748,430
Pooled Real Estate Funds........... 2,775,749
Pooled Alternative Investments...., 12,047,425
Money Market Mutual Funds........ 1,474,005
PRIT . 33,255,413
Total [nvestments..........c.co. $ 108,848,403
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Credit Risk

The City has not adepted a formal policy related to Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2013, Standard & Poor’s [nvestors
Service rated the City's investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair
Invesiment Type Value AA A 8EB BB
Government Sponsored
Enterprises................. $ 2527177 $ 25827177 & - % - % -
Corporate Bonds........... 4,808,814 1,040,284 2,636,517 957,987 174,016
Total..........ooooooo.. $ 7,335,991 $ 3567461 § 2636517 $ 957,997 § 174,016

The City’s investments in MMDT and PRIT were unrated.

The System has not adopted a formal policy related to Credit Risk. As of December 31, 2012, Standard & Poor's
Investors Service rated the System’s investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair

Invesiment Type Vaiue AAA AA A BBB 8 tinrated
Government Agencles.... § 2,552,769 § - $ 1,343327 § - % - 8 - § 1200442
Government Sponsorad

Enterprise...................... 2227052 - 2,227,052 - - - -
Corporate Bonds............. 6,385,258 382545 344944 1,305,713 1,037,600 - 3,314,457
Bond Mutual Fund........... 9,210,178 3,021,962 - - - 8,168,216 -
Total oo % 20375258 & 3404507 % 3,015323 § 1305713 $§ 1037600 § 6,183,218 $§ 4523899

Conceniration of Credit Risk

The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. No more than § percent of the
City's investrents are in equity securities and are invested in any one issuer.

The System places no limit on the amount the System may invest in any one issuer. No more than 5 percent of
the System’s investments are in fixed income securities or equity securities and are invested in any one issuer.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2013, receivables for the individual major and non-major governmental funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Unccllectibles Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes............... § 1,782,693 $§ (955,102) % 837,591

Real estate tax deferrals...........o 309,991 - 309,801

TaX NS, e e, 2,927,496 - 2,827 496

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................... 1,625,441 (888,248) 737,193
Departmental andother................ ... 1,434,020 {169,976) 1,264,044

Intergovernmental.........co 4 608,642 - 4,608,642

Total $ 12698283 § (2013,328) § 10684957

At June 30, 2013, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise funds consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

Utility liens............o e B 242164 3 - 3 242,164

Lserfees. ... 8,357,473 - 8,357,473

infergovernmental................. 1,391,808 - 1,391,809

TOtal . $ 9991446 % - 8 9 091,446

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Asset type;
Real estate and personal property faxes............... $ 421,584 3 - 3 421,584
Real estate tax deferrals.........ooooi i, 309,991 - 309,991
Tax ens. ..o e 2,027,498 - 2,927,496
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................... 737,193 - 737,193
Departmental and other....................... ... 18,201 1,245,843 1,264,044
Intergovernmental.............. .. - 2,362,732 2,362,732
Tax foreclosures. ... ... 717,827 - 717 627
Total . 8 B132092 B 3,608,875 $ 8,740,667
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assetls not being depraciated:

Land. oo e
Construchion in progress... ..o

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvemenis.........ooov i
Buiiding improvements..............o
VEhICIES . .
Machinery and equipment..............
Infrastruciure... ...

Total capital assets being depreciated.................

Less accumuiated depreciation for

Land improvements...... ...
Building ImprovementS...... oo v

Vehicles...............

Machinery and equipment...............
Infrastructure.... ...
Taotal accumulated depreciation.............. e

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Tetal governmental activities capital assets, net

City of Woburn, Massachusefls

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
22068936 % -3 - $ 22068938
- 646,317 - 546,317
22,068 836 648,317 - 22715253
3,485,048 1,662,875 - 5,038,521
17,038,970 177,837 - 17,214,507
147,923 702 - - 147,923,702
2,851,705 319,076 (118,260) 3,052,521
6,821,909 1,348,218 (139,241) 8,030,886
51,282,482 869,458 - 52,151,841
229,402,714 4,266,865 (257,501) 233 412,078
{1,762,305) (121,453) - (1,883,758)
(8,593,255) (764,656) - (9,357,811}
{20,375,966} (804,532) - {21,181,498)
(1,877.,531) {335,138) 118,260 (2,094,407)
(4,940,7C1) {491,173) 138,241 (5,292 633)
(32,815,181) (1,251,384) - (34,085,575)
(70,385,949) (3,768,334) 257 501 (73,876,782)
159,036,765 498 531 - 159 535,296
$ 181105701 § 1144848 % - § 182250549
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Water and Sewer Activities:
Capital assets nol being depreciated:
Land.. .o 0L B 332,240 B - % - % 332,240
Construction in Progress......oooocoovveie e - 83,000 - 83,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated............ 332,240 83,000 - 415,240
Capital assets being depreciated;
Buildings... ... 6,853,303 - - 6,953,303
MERICIES. oo e e 477,750 - (55,750) 122,000
Machinery and equipment.............. 558,465 - - 559,465
Infrastructure. ... 66,338,062 1,749,057 - 68,087,119
Total capital assets being depreciated................. 74,028 580 1,749,057 (55,750) 75,721 887
Less accumuiated depreciation for;
BUHdiNgS. ..o e {2,503,248) {145,153) - (2,648,401)
VehiCles. e {(177,750) - 55 750 (122,000)
Machinery and equipment........... (461,859) (12,498} - (474,357)
Infrastructre.. ..o (21,099,861) {1,358,004) - {22,457 865)
Total accumulated depreciation........................ {24,242 718} (1,515,655) 55,750 (25,702,623}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 49 785 882 233,402 - 50,019,264
Total water and sewer activities capital assets, net........ $ 50,118,102 % 316,402 $ - § 50,434,504

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government................. e
Publicsafely...........o.o o
EQUCaHON. o
PUDHC WOTKS. ..o e e e e
HUMaN SBIVICES . i e
Culture and recreation. .. ... e

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities. ..

Business-Type Activities:

Vater AN SBWET. . oo
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NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Due to/from other funds

As of June 30, 2013, the City has an interfund receivable/payable of $10,692 which exists between the general
fund and the state highway grants fund. The purpose of this balance is to cover short-term cash needs that will be
funded by future grant proceeds.

interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are sumimarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Transfers Out; Fund Funds Total
GeneralFund..............cciiiiii. B - $ 2,204,933 § 2,204,933 {)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds... ... 3,980,722 - 3,980,722 (2}
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund... . 1,505,502 - 1,505,602 (3}
Total o 8 5466,224 % 2204933 ¢ 78671157

(1) Represents budgeted transfers from the general fund to the debt service fund and a special education grant
fund,

(2) Represents budgeted transfers to the general fund from other availabte funds and the debt service fund.

(3) Represents the transfer of indirect costs from the water and sewer enterprise fund to the general fund.

NOTE § - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

s Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

o Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. interest

expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise fund,
respectively.
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Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
Interest June 30, June 30,
Type Purpose Rate Due Date 2012 issued Redeemed 2013
Governmental Activities:
BAN  Municipal Purpose...................... 1.00% 10/26/12 § 2,000,000 $ - $ 2000000 % -
BAN  Municipal Purpose.......................  1.00% 10/28/12 700,000 - 700,000 -
BAN  Municipal Purpose....................... 1.00% 03/03/13 - 1,240,000 1,240,000 -
BAN  Municipal Purpose.......................  1.00% 03/03/13 - 700,000 700,000 -
Total Governmental. ... 2,700,000 1,840,000 4 840,000 -
Business-Type Activities:
BAN  Water System Improvements......... 1.50% 10/28/12 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 -
BAN  Water System Improvements......... 1.00% 10/25/12 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 -
BAN  Water System Improvements......... 1.00% 03/03/13 - 4,300,000 4,300,000 -
Total Business-Type Activities................oo . 4,300,000 4,300,000 8,600,000 -
Total Short-term Debt. ..o 3 7,000000 8 B,240000 3 13,240,000 $ -

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a kmit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the
debt limit." In addition, however, debt may be authorized in excess of that imit for specific purposes. Such debt,
when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt Iimit."

in order to take advantage of favorable interest rates, the City issued $12,610,000 of General Obligation
Refunding Bonds on March 21, 2013. $15,000,000 of general obligation bonds were advance refunded by
placing the proceeds of the refunding bonds and $2,793,361 of available funds in an irrevocable trust to provide
for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As aresult, the refunded bonds are considered to be
defeased and the liability has been removed from the statement of net position. The reacquisition price exceeded
the net carrying amount of the old debt by $1,899,000. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total
debt service payments by $1,517,000 and resulted in an economic gain of $962,000. Af June 30, 2013,
$15,000,000 of bonds outstanding from the advance refunding is considered defeased.

In prior years, the City defeased certain of its outstanding general cbligation bonds by placing the proceeds of
new refunding bonds in an irrevocable escrow account to provide amounts sufficient for the future payment of
principal and interest on those bonds. Accordingly, neither the assets in escrow ror the liability for the defeased
bonds are included in the City's financial statements. At June 30, 2013, $7,645,000 of general obligation bonds
outstanding are considered defeased.
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Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2013, and the debt service requirements are as
follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule —~ Governmental Funds

Original Interest

Malurities Loan Rate Beginning Ending

Project Through Amount (%) Balance Issuead Redeamed Balance
Muricipal Purpose Bonds of 2004, 2026 % 10,003,033 344§ 1,688,331 § - % {514,076} § 1,154 255
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2005... .................. 2006 22,500,000 4.48 21,000,000 - (16,500,000) 4,500,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2005.... ... 2018 1,150,000 4,19 855,000 - (290,000 565,000
Muricipal Purpose Bonds of 2007 ... 2027 2,370,000 2.00 2,210,000 - (160,000} 2,050,000
MWPAT CW-08-05..........o e U 2018 300,000 2.00 187,425 - (29,607} 157,728
BWVWIPAT CW-DB-12. e 2018 225,000 2.00 140,569 - (22,2733 118,296
MWPAT CW-07-98. 2029 250,000 2.00 217,811 - {10,8686) 206,845
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2012, ... 2037 70,154,000 3.18 19,625,000 - (570,000} 18,055,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012..... .. 2025 4,830,000 3.26 4,830,000 - {70,000) 4,760,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013, ..o 2023 1,826,000 3.64 - 1,826,000 - 1,826,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2013......... 2026 12,610,600 3.78 - 12,610,000 - 12,610,000
TOBL e e $ 50,734,136 § 14436000 5 {(18166,912) § 47,003,224

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Governmental bonds payable in future fiscal years are as
follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2014, $ 3319538 § 1475832 % 4,795,370
2015 3,320,219 1,339,406 4,659,625
2016, 3,281,721 1,290,499 4,572,220
2017 2,943,069 1,223,590 4,166,659
2018 2,919,443 1,130,945 4,050,388
2098, 2,807,251 4,037,958 3,845,209
2020, 2,827,499 944,361 3,771,860
2021 3,017,751 845,833 3,863,584
2022, 2,998,009 739,350 3,737,359
2023 2,973,271 627,863 3,601,134
2024, 2,783,540 514,020 3,297 560
2025 2,548,813 415,196 2,964,009
2026, 2,239,092 342,698 2,581,790
2027 969,377 295,343 1,264,720
2028 829,667 267,424 1,087,091
2028 829,964 242,063 1,072,027
2080 i 810,000 216,268 1,026,268
2031 860,000 190,108 990,108
2032 800,000 163,459 963,459
2033 800,000 135,209 935,209
2034 800,000 105,709 905,709
2035 795,000 75,800 870.8C0
2036, . 795,000 45,480 840,480
2037 795,000 15,145 810,145
Total ..o, $ 47003224 $ 13679559 $§ 60,882,783
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Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule —~ Enterprise Funds

Qriginal Interest

Maturities Loan Rate Beginning Ending

Project Through Amount (%) Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
MWPAT B0-07.... e i e, 2021 5,046,059 448 § 2,755,000 § - 3 (265,000 $ 2,490,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2004 2025 5,879,262 3.88 1,160,000 - (390,000 776,000
MWRA Notes of 2007................. 2017 1,100,000 0.00 550,000 (110,000 440,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008, 2018 220,000 4.68 140,000 - (20,000} 120,600
MWRA Notes of 2008................. 2018 1,200,000 0.00 720,000 - {120,000 600,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008, 2030 6,500,000  4.18 5,050,000 - (235,000} 5,815,000
Muricipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2008......... 2020 800,000 3.83 710,000 - {95,000 £15,000
MWRA Notes of 2010, 2015 1,154,330 0.00 923,464 (115,433) 808,031
MWPAT DWS 08-19. ... e 2031 6,241,464 2.00 5,085,102 (261,541) 5,723,561
MWPAT DWS O7-17 . e 2031 3,460,617 2,00 3,469,617 {152,008) 3,317,612
MWRA Notes of 2012, o 2022 1,000,000 0.00 1,000,000 - {100,000) 900,000
MWPAT DWS 08-18-A... ..o 2033 2,035,158 2.00 2,035,158 - - 2,035,188
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012...... ... 2025 2,865,000 3.38 2,865,000 - (40,000} 2,825,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2043, 2033 4,300,000 3.32 4,300,000 - 4,300,000
MWPAT DWS-07-17-A e 2031 619,179 2.00 618,179 619,179
Sub-total water...............o 28,483,341 4,918,179 (1,903 679) 31,478,541
Municipal Purpose Refundmg Bonds of 2009 ......... 2020 505,000 3.83 395,000 {50,600} 345,000
MWRA Notes of 2010, e s 2015 549,025 0.00 560,415 {189,805} 379,610
MWRA Notes of 2013.. 2018 479,050 0.00 - 475,050 - 479 050
Sub-tolal SEWET... .o 964,415 479,050 (239,805} 1,203,660
Total enterprise funds.,...... 3 20,427,756 $ 5,398,220 § (2143784)$ 32882201

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payabie

in future fiscal years are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2014, $ 2,558,707 % 912,298 § 3,471,005
2016 2,589,597 838,416 3,428,013
2016 2,340,903 778,389 3,117,292
2017 2,367,242 716,191 3,083,433
2018 2,273,813 648,992 2,922,805
2019, 2,069,811 577,656 2,847 467
2020.. 2,096,860 507,550 2,604 410
2021.. 1,883,722 453,554 2,337,276
2022.. 1,566,269 402,136 1,968,405
2023.. 1,484,072 355,791 1,839,863
2024, ... 1,507,138 307,812 1,814,850
2025 1,635,471 259,908 1,795,378
2028. 1,294 077 218,688 1,512,765
2027.. 1,312,862 181,672 1,494,634
2028.. 1,352,131 142,964 1,495,095
2029, . 1,386,589 102,684 1,489,573
2030 1,421,343 61,644 1,482,887
2031 066,401 29,663 996,054
2032 336,229 13,930 360,159
2033 338,864 4,679 343,643

Total.............. $ 32682201 & 7512807 $ 40,195,008
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The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) operates an infiltration/Inflow Local Assistance Program
for community owned colleciion systems. For each community approved for the project, financial assistance
received from the MWRA consists of a grant and non-interest bearing loan. At June 30, 2013, the outstanding
principal amount of these loans totaled $858,660.

The governmenta!l funds are scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Water Poliution Abatement Trust
{(MWEAT) on a periodic basis for principal in the amount of $1,223 and interest costs for $25,883. Thus, net
MWPAT loan repayments, including interest, are scheduled to be $165,329. Since the City is iegally obligated for
the total amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements.
The fiscal year 2013 interest subsidy totaled $3,182.

The water and sewer enterprise fund is scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Water Pollution
Abatement Trust (MWRPAT) on a periodic basis for principal in the amount of $772,630 and interest costs for
$382,966. Thus, net MWPAT loan repayments, including interest, are scheduled to be $1,862,864. The principal
subsidies are guaranteed and therefore a $772,630 intergovernmental receivable has been reported in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Since the City is legally obligated for the total amount of the debt, such
amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. The fiscal year 2013 principal and
interest subsidies totaled $72,345 and $95,648, respectively.

The City is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit, At June 30, 2013, the City had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Landfill closwre... ..o B 500,000
School construction and repairs...........o.oe 19,791,688
Storm water/drainage improvements............. 6,824 422
Sewer Improvemenis........oo i 1,765,175
Recreation facilities remodeling.................... 878,000
Water improvements... ..., 10,321,569
Land acquisition....................oo 279,000
Total..oooo e . 3 40,357,848

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the following changes occurred in long-term ligbiiities:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balange Partion
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences.............. $ 6787000 $ 1,878,000 $ (1,968B,000) $ 6,697,000 § 1,955000
Other postemployment benefits... .. 27,248 680 16,828,527 (7,244,067} 36,833,140 -
Bonds payable.......................... 50,734,136 14,436,000 {18,166,912) 47,003,224 3,318,538
Total .. B 847688168 $ 33242527 § (27.378979) $ 90,633,384 § 5274538
Business-type Activities:
Unamortized bond premiums........ $ 20684 - % (5,734) & 23850 §% 5172
Compensated absences.............. 234,600 56,000 (58,000) 232,000 58,000
Other postemployment benefits... .. 198,742 105,636 (83,912} 220,466 "
Bonds payable............n 29,427 756 5,398,229 (2,143,784) 32,682 201 2 558,707
Totat........oocicc. % 20880182 5 55598685 § (2291430 § 33,158,817 $ 2621879
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 8 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

GASB #54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendabie.
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted
to cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid
items, inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The City has reported principal portions of
endowment funds as nonspendable.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB #54 has provided a hierarchy of spendabile fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending consiraints,

e Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

¢« Committed: fund balances that contain seif-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority. The City's highest leve! of decision making authority is City Councit.

¢ Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the governmant to be used for a
particular purpose.

= Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.
As of June 30, 2013, the governmental fund balances consisted of the following:

Governmentai Funds

Nonmajor Total
Goodyear Governmental Governmental
General School Funds Funds
Fund Balances

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal....................... 8 -8 - § 2.542085 § 2,542,085

Rastricted for:
Municipal federal and state grants.............. - - 479,821 479,821
Education federal and state grants............. - - 326,345 326,345
Recelpls reserved for appropriation funds ... - - 2,039,162 2,039,162
Municipal revolving funds ........................ - - 513,839 513,839
Schoollunch ..o - - 268,083 268,083
Infrastructure fund............oo - - 1,067,482 1,067,482
Other special revenue..............ocovonn - - 921,796 921,796
Capital projects funds... ..o, - 848,752 - 846,752
Debt service funds..........oovvnvees - - 1,008,729 1,006,729
Library trust funds..........oooo i - - 6,788,839 6,788,839
Cemetery perpetual care funds................. - - 304,921 304,921

Committed to:
Affordabie housing stabilization fund........... 2,848,116 “ - 2,848,116
Public safety.........ccooeii 23,748 - - 23,746
Public works... ..o 626,057 - - 626,057
Human services... ..o e 33,372 - - 33,372
Culture and recreation..........o.ooc v, 2,328 - - 2,325
Capital outlay..o...oooeoii 2,448,391 - - 2,449,391

Assigned fo:

General government................o.ans 308,287 " - 308,267
Public safety.........ccocciinii 70,858 - - 70,859
Education 314,547 - - 314,547
Public works....ooov e 39,897 - - 38,897
Human services.......ooei i 1,447 - - 1,447
Culture and recreation.......c.ccocceee e, 48,540 B - 48,540
Employee benefits...........occin 1,217,880 - - 1,217,880
Unassigned.........c.oocoioiiiiicienccveeieeeen .. 25 852 264 - {346,178) 25,607,086
Total Fund Balances.................oovv v 3 33,836,718 6 846,752 % 15013024 § 50,697,394
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Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body.

At year end, the general stabilization fund totaled $7,858,061 and is reported as unassigned fund balance within
the general fund; and the affordable housing stabilization fund totaled $2,848,116 and is reported as commiited
fund balance within the general fund.

NOTE 9 - RISK FINANCING

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. The City administers
various premium-based heaith care plans, workers compensation and other insurance for its employees and
retirees.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

Pian Description - The City contributes to the System, a cost-sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Woburn Contricutory Retirement Board. Substantially all employees are members of the
System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members of the Massachusetts
Teachers Retirement System, o which the City does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative
expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount
of these on-behalf payments totaled $12,720,845 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and, accordingly, are
reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of
the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Cost-of-fiving adjustments
granted between 1881 and 1987 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth's state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the System.

The System issues a publicly available unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the
Commonwealth’'s PERAC. That report may be obtained by contacting the System located at 10 Common Street,
Wobhurn, Massachusetts, 01801,

At December 31, 2012, the System’s membership consists of the following:

ACTIVE MBI DB S . e e e 581
INBCIVE MEMDEIS. ot e e e 77
DA MBS . ottt 35
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits......... 375

Ot 1,068
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Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of
annual covered compensation. The City is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial
determined contribution that is apportioned among the empioyers based on active current payroll. The current
and two preceding fiscal years apportionment of the annual pension cost between the two employers required the
City to contribute approximately 96% of the total. Chapter 32 of the MGL. governs the contributions of plan
members and the City.

Annual Pension Cost - The City’s contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and
2017 were $4,884,138, $4,712,121, and $4,464,665, respectively, which equaled its required contribution for each
fiscal year. At June 30, 2013, the City did not have a net pension obligation. The required contribution was
determined as part of the January 1, 2012, actuarial valuation using the individual entry age normal actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included an 8.26% investment rate of return and projected salary increases
of 3.0% per year increasing to 4.0% cver a 5 year period. The actuarial value ¢f the System's assets was
determined using a 5 year smoothing method. The System's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being

amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2013, was
23 years,

Schedule of Funding Progress
{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial UAAL asa

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date {A) (B} {B-A) (A/B) (9] ({B-AYC)

g1/0112 % 106,182 § 162,638 $ 56,457 653% $ 27,681 204.0%

01/01/10 164,707 154,300 49,593 67.9% 27,433 180.8%

01/01/08 110,478 141,758 31,280 77.9% 24 432 128.0%

01/01/07 102,354 132,433 30,079 77.3% 24,258 124.0%

01/01/05 87,819 120,595 32,776 72.8% 22,624 144.9%

01/01/00 75,960 88,763 12,803 85.6% 17,183 74.5%

Funding progress is reported based on the biennial actuarial valuation performed by the System, and is being
accumufated on & biennial basis. The Cily is responsible for approximately 96% of the unfunded liability.

NOTE 11 — POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The City of Woburn administers a singie-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Retiree
Health Plan). The plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the
City's group heaith insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL
assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated
between the City and the unions representing City empioyees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. The
Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — Contribution requirements are aisc negctiated between the City and union representatives. The
required coniribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. Depending on the plan selected, the
City contributes varicus percentages of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and
their spouses. Plan members receiving benefits coniribute the remaining portion of thair premium costs.
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Annual QPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actuaily contributed to the plan, and
changes in the City's net OPEB obligation are summarized in the following table:

Annual required contribution...........oo 3 16,800,797
Interest on net OPEB obligation... 1,235,134
Adjustment {o annual required contnbutuon {1,001,768)

Annual OPEB cost (expense).........oo i, 17,034,163
Contributions made............ oo (7,327,979)
Increase in net OPEB obligation................. 9,706,184
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year........................ 27,447 422
Net OPEB obligation-end ofyear.............ocoo e, 3 37,153,606

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligaticn for fiscal year 2013 was as follows:

Percentage of

Fisca! Year Annual Annuai OPEB Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
8/30/2013 § 17,034,183 43% $ 37,153,606
8/30/2012 16,179,374 41% 27,447 422
6/30/2011 14,005,085 50% 17,832,612

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $243,982,941, all of which was unfunded.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continuat revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include technigues that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial vaiue of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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Inthe June 30, 2011, actuarial valuation, actuarial abilities were determined using the projected unit credit cost
method. The actuarial assumptions inciuded a 4.5% investment return assumption, which is based on the
expected yield on the assets of the City, calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date,
and an annual medical cost trend rate of 9% initially, graded to 5% over 8 years and included a 4% inflation
assumption. The UAAL is being amortized using a 30 year open amortization method, with amortization
payments increasing at 4% per year. The remaining amortization period at June 3G, 2013 is 28 years.

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in a number of federal awasd programs. Although the grant programs have been audited in
accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2013, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disatlowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2013,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
position at June 30, 2013,

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

The City has authorized projects for surface drainage and water meter installations. The City has entered into, or
is planning to enter into, contracis totaling approximately $6.8 million and $6 miltion, respectively, to complete
these projects.

The City has authorized a project for overhauling the Shaker Glen Pump station. The City has entered into, oris
pianning tc enter into, contracts totaling approximately $800,000 to complete this project.

The City has remaining confracts totaling approximately $248,000 fo complete the Rag Rock water tank project.

NOTE 14 - IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMERNTS

During fiscal year 2013, the following GASB pronouncements were impiemented:

s GASB Statement #50, Acceounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements. The
implementation of this pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.

» (GASB Statement #81, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. The implementation of this
pronocuncement did not impact the basic financial statements.

s (GASB Statement #63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resqurces, and Net Position. Financial statement changes include net assets changing to net position
and invested in capital assets, net of related debt changing to net investment in capital assets. Notes to
the basic financial statements were changed to provide additional disclosure on deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources.

e GASB Statement #66, Technical Corrections ~ 2012, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and
MNo. 62. The implementation of this proncuncement did not impact the basic financial statements,
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The following GASB pronouncements wili be implemented in future fiscal years:

e The GASB issued Statement #65, ifems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required
to be implemented in fiscal year 2014,

¢ The GASB issued Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB
Stafement No. 25, which is required o be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

e The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, which is required to he implemented in fiscal year 2015.

e« The GASB issued Statement #69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations,
which is reguired to be implemented in fiscal year 2015.

e The GASB issued Statement #70, Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014.

e The GASB issued Statement #71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, which is required to be implemented simultaneously with Statement #68,

Management is currently assessing the impact that the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements,
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgeted Amounts

Amounts Current Year
Carried forward initial Original Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
netoftaxrefunds....o..oo 3 - 86,670,044 86,670,044 & 86,870,044
Tax ens. .o - - - -
Motor vehicle excise taxes, ., - 4,439,000 4,439,000 4,439.000
Hotelmoteltax.................. - 2,000,060 2,000,000 2,000,000
Meals tax.......ooiiii i - 500,000 580,000 500,000
Penalties and interest ontaxes.........ooovveoeeiiveen. . - 540,000 540,000 840,000
intergovernmental.......... - 13,011,087 13,011,087 13,011,087
Departmental and cther............ciinn - 1,041,000 1,041,000 1,041,000
Investiment InCOmMe....ooo i e - 300,000 300,000 300,000
TOTALREVENUES. ... - 108,601,131 108,601,131 108,801,131
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government. ..., 248,288 3,383,131 3,631,419 3,954,956
Public safety.......coo 237,773 14,847 037 15,084,81G 16,673,309
Education.........c.oooi i 214,411 50,110,112 50,321,523 5(3,247,883
PUublic WOrKS. ..o 540,325 7,800,860 8,341,285 8,356,447
HUMEn ServiGeS. . ..ooviv i 22,722 1,022,578 1,045,300 1,348,084
Culture and recreation...............oci i, 53,720 1,855,270 1,908,990 1,887,604
Pension benefits.................... - 4,811,668 4,911,668 4,911,668
Employee benefits. ... 1,286,783 18,171,865 19,458,648 19,458,648
State and county Charges..........ooviieiie e - 3,191,380 3,191,390 3,191,390
Capital outlay. .......oooovriii e 4,637,596 - 4,637,596 4,664,772
Debt service:
Principal......o - 1,380,000 1,380,000 3,025,000
Interest.. ... - 1,065,074 1,055,074 2,050,296
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ..o 7,238,818 107,729,085 114,967,703 119,770,957
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. ... (7,238,818 872,048 (6,366,672} (10,969,826}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES):
Sale of capital assets..........iiii - - - -
Transfers ... - 1,442 666 1,442 666 5,403,388
Transfers QUi - {2,131,295) (2,131,295) (2,281,759)
TCTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES(USES)....ovi e, - (688,628 {688,629} 3,141,629
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE........................... (7,238,618) 183,417 (7,055,201} {7.828,197)
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year........ - 21,800,360 21,800,360 21,800,350
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year............... $ (7,238,618} % 22 083,777 % 14,845,159 § 14,072,163

See notes to required supplementary information,

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 54

Required Supplementary Information



Actual Amounts Variance
Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Amounts To Next Year Budget

87,928,557 § -5 1,058,613

1,238,047 - 1,236,047
5,042,688 - 603,688
2,367 457 - 367,457
892 407 - 392,407
1,080,188 - 450,186
13,080,864 - 78,777
2,020,647 - 979,647
224 198 - {75,802)
113,893,051 - 5,081,920
3,511,532 308,267 135,157
16,466,758 94,605 111,948
49,930,804 314,547 2,432
7,882,537 665,054 (292,044}
1,292,875 34,819 21,290
1,786,170 50,865 40,569
4,906,631 - 5,037
17,728,332 1,217,890 512,426
3,247.720 - (56,330)
2,097,662 2,449,3%1 117,719
3,025,000 - -
1,710,523 - 339,773
113,686,644 5,136,338 937.975
196,407 (5,136,338) 5,029,895
308,715 306,715
5,403,388 - -
(2,261,759} - -
3,448,344 - 308,715
3,844,751 (5,136,338 6,335,610
21,900,360 - -
% 25545111 $  {5,136,338) % 6,336,610
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Retirement System Schedules of Funding
Progress and Employer Conftributions |

The Retirement Systermn Schedule of Funding Progress presents multiyear trend information relating to the cost-
sharing pian as a whole, of which the City is one participating employer, about whether the actuarial value of pian
assels s increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

The Retirement System Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information for required and
actual contributions relating to the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the City is cne participating employer,
as well as the City's proportionate share of the plan’s annual contributions,
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WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

{Dollar amounts in thousands)

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued  Unfunded Percentage
Actuariat Value of Liability (AAL)  AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payrotl Payroll
Date (A) (B) (B-A) {A/B) {C) (B-A)C)
01/01/92 $ 108,182 $ 162639 § 56,457 853% § 27681 204.0%
01/01/10 104,707 164,300 49,593 67.9% 27,433 180.8%
01/01/08 110,478 141,758 31,280 77.2% 24,432 128.0%
0101107 102,354 132,433 30,079 77.3% 24,258 124.0%
01/01/05 87.819 120,595 32,776 72.8% 22,624 144.9%
01/01/00 75,960 88,763 12,803 85.8% 17,183 74.5%
01/01/99 68,860 85,472 18,612 78.2% 16,269 114.4%
01/01/98 55,481 78,261 22,780 70.9% 15,427 147 7%

See notes to required supplementary information.
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WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

(Doltar amounts in thousands}

System Wide City of Woburn
(BIA)
Fiscal Year Annual (A) {B) City's Percentage
Ended Required Actual Percentage Actual of System Wide
June 30 Contributions Contributions Contributed Coniributions Actual Contributions
2013 5 5089 $ 5,089 100% 3 4,884 95.97%
2012 4,914 4,914 100% 4,712 95.88%
2012 4,683 4,663 100% 4,485 95.75%
2610 4,524 4,624 100% 4,334 95.80%
2009 4,369 4,369 100% 4,200 96.13%
2008 4,259 4,259 100% 4,087 95.95%
2007 4,150 4,150 100% 3,884 96.00%

The City's Actuai Confributions equaled 100% of its Required Contributions for each year presented,

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment
Benefit Plan Schedules

The Schedule of Funding Progress compares, over time, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits with the
actuarial value of accumulated plan assets. The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, over time, the
annual required contribution with the actual coniributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presentis factors that significantly affect the identification of
frends in the amounts reporied.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Fundsd Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) {C) {{B-A)/C)
B/30/2011 8 - § 243,982,491 § 243,982,491 0% $ N/A N/A
8/30/2009 - 208,491,598 208,491,596 0% N/A N/A
6/30/2007 - 198,799,831 198,799,831 0% N/A N/A
Schedule of Employer Conftributions
Annual Actual
Fiscal Year Required Contributions Percentage
Ended Contribution Made Coniributed
6/30/2013  § 16,800,797 $ 7,327,979 44%
6/30/2012 16,026,905 6,664,564 42%
8/30/2011 13,857,572 7,059,608 51%
6/30/2010 13,220,391 8,231,320 47%
6/30/2009 12,545,242 8,600,158 69%

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009,
information for prior years is not available.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial Methods:

Valuationdate. .. ... June 30, 2011
Actuarial cost method...............ccooi oo, Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method............oooocce i 30 year open amortization method
with payments increasing at 4.0% per year
Remaining amortization peried.............oooen 30 years as of June 30, 2011

Actuarial Assumptions:

investmentrate of return.........o 4.5%, pay-as-you-go
Medical costirendrate............ao 0.0% graded to 5.0% over & years
Inflation assumption..........cooooceei e, 4.0%

Plan Membership:

Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents. ... 930
Current active members. ... 863
Total 1,783

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

1. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by the Council. The Mayor presents
an annual budget to the Council, which includes estimates of revenues and other financing sources and
recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Council, which has full authority to amend
and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subseguent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majarity Council approval via a supplemental appropriation or Councif order.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior fiscal
year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year. These carry forwards are
inciuded as part of the subsequent fiscal year's original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized
for an appropriation account. However, the payment of debt service is statutorily required, regardless of whether
such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments
may exceed the level of spending authorized by majority vote of the Council.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original
fiscal 2013 approved budget authorized approximately $117.1 million in appropriations, carryforwards, and other
amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2013, the Council also approved supplemental appropriations totaling
approximately $4.9 million. The change is primarily due to increases in appropriations for public safety and debt
service.

The City Auditor has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control is
exercised through the City's accounting system.

2. Budgetary - GAAP Regonciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013, is presented below:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis....................cocee . 8 3,644,751

Perspective difference;
Activity of the stabifization fund receorded in the

general fund for GAAP. ... e {1.818,162)
Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in market value of investments............. i, 1,663,629
Net change in recerding 60-day receipts..............oviivc v {21,000}
Neat change in recording tax refunds payable................coooo o (82,000)
Net change in recording acorued payroll.. ... oo (118,481)
increase in revenues due to on-behalf payments.................... ... 12,720,845
increase in expenditures due to on-behalf payments........................ (12,720,845)
Net change in fund balance - GAAPbasis.................................... § 3,500,637
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3. Appropriation Deficits

During fiscal year 2013, actual expenditures and encumbrances exceeded sppropriations for snow and ice
removal, and state and county charges. These over expenditures will be funded by via the tax levy and other
available funds during fiscal year 2014,

NOTE B — PENSION PLAN

The City contributes to the System, a cost-sharing, muitipie-employer defined benefit pension plan ("Plan"}
administered by the Wobum Contributory Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, and
death benefits to members and beneficiaries. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions of the Plan. The City is reguired to pay into the Retirement System its share of the
system-wide actuarially determined contribution which is apportioned among the employers based on active
covered payroll,

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information presents multi-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing gver time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Additionally, the schedule of employer contributions, presented as
required supplementary information presents muiti-year trend information for required and actuat contributions
relating 1o the cost-sharing plan as a whole, of which the City is one participating employer, as well as the City's
proportionate share of the plan’s annual contributions. This information is designed o be helpful for
understanding the scale of the information presented relative to the City.

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the Retirement System’s most recent
actuariat valuation:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation Date....... January 1, 2012
Actuarial Cost Method...........oooc Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method. ... Increasing at 4.0% per year
Remaining Amortization Period. ... .o 24 years remaining as of January 1, 2012, closed
Asset Valuation Method. ... Market value with a 5 year smoothing
Actuarial Assumptions
Investmentrate of return....._.............. .. 8.25%
Projected salary increases............ooooovii e 3.0% increasing to 4.0% over 5 years
Cost of living adjustments..................co e, 3.00% of the lesser of the pension amount and $12,000
per year

NOTE C - OTHER POSTEMPLOYNMENT BENEFITS

The City administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare pian (“the Retiree Health Plan™). The plan
provides lifetime healthcare and prescription drug benefits for efigible retirees and their spouses through the City’s
health insurance pian, which covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The City currently finances its other postemployment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As a result, the funded

ratio (actuarial value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued kability) is 0%. in accordance
with Governmental Accounting Standards, the City has recorded its OPEB cost equa to the actuarial determined
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annual required contribution (ARC) which includes the normal cost of providing benefits for the year and a
component for the amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liabifity of the plan.

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued tiability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets. The Schedule of Employer
Contributions compares, over time, the annual required contribttion with the actual contributions made.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presenis factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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Powers & Sullivan, LLC

Certified Public Aceountants

100 Quannapowitt Parkway
Suite 101
Wakefield, MA 01880
T. 781-914-1700

P 781-914-1701
To the Honorable Mayor

City of Woburn, Massachusetts

www.powersandsullivan.com

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts
{City), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System
which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012), in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting
{internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financiat statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
centrois and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and
suggestions regarding those matiers.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and will be pleased to discuss them in further detail
at your convenience, to perferm any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations,

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the City of Woburn,
Massachusetts, and is not intended tc be and shouid not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

),
/gw,/ %/%(//é L

March 28, 2014
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PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS



AUDIT OF STUDENT ACTIVITY FUNDS

Prior Year Comment

in the prior year, we indicated that the City is not in compliance with Massachusetts General Law (MGL), Chapter
71, Section 47, as amended by Chapter 66 of the Acts of 1996, because it does not undergo annual audits cf the
student activity funds. The audit may be an internal audit, if so approved by the School Committee. However, at
least one time in every three years, the audit should be performed by an independent audit firm.

Current Status

The student activity funds were audited by an independent audi firm as of June 30, 2613,

LIBRARY CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that there are various Library bank accounts that are not maintained by the
Treasurer and are not accounted for by the City Audifor. Instead, they are maintained and managed by the
Library Trustees. During fiscal 2012, the Library did not maintain an accounting of the Library trust funds activity
and account balances. Without a proper accounting of the Library trust funds, it is not possible to effectively
meonitor and manage the overall performance of the investment accounts and to accurately recencile all other
bank accounts.

Current Status

During fiscal year 2013, the Library began using QuickBooks to account for and reconcile the Library cash and
investments.

INVESTMENT POLICY

Prior Year Comment

in the prior year, we indicated that the Treasurer drafted an investment policy to be presented to the governing
bedy for review and approval. We recommended that the Treasurer implement the invesiment policy upon review
and approval.

Current Status

The City Council has nof formally accepted the Treasurer's invesiment policy,

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City Council review and approve the proposed investment policy and that the
Treasurer implement the approved policy.



FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT

Prier Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the opportunity to commit and conceal fraud exists where there are assets
susceptible to misappropriation and inadeqguate controls to prevent or detect the fraud. To address this risk, we
recommended that the City perform a risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the risk of asset
misappropriation. Risk assessment, including fraud risk assessment, is one element of internal control. Thus,
ideally, the City's internal control should include performance of this assessment, even though our annual
financial statement audits include consideraticn of fraud. We recommended that management complete the
development and implementation of a fraud risk assessment program fo identify, analyze, and manage the risk of
asset misappropriation.

Current Status

The City Auditor has drafted an anti-fraud policy; however it has not been presented to the City Council for review
and approval. Additionally, the City has not performed a fraud risk assessment.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City perform a fraud risk assessment to identify, analyze, and manage the
risk of asset misappropriation.

RESOLVE CREDIT REAL ESTATE RECEIVABLE BALANCES

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that there are several old rea! estate tax receivable accounts (fiscal 2001 ~ 2007)
that have credit balances, which totaled approximately $202,000, as of June 30, 2013. The Treasurer/Collector
believes that the underlying reason for the ¢redit balances relates to the timeliness in which the City processes
taxpayer over-payments. These transactions should be processed on a timelier basis so that taxpayers are
receiving proper credit for their payments and so that the general ledger is reporting the correct receivable
balances. :

Current Status

The Treasurer continues to investigate the credit balances to determine the cause. Due to the age of the
balances and the information available, progress is slow.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City investigate these credit balances. We also recommend that adjustments
be recorded {o correct the current credit balances in the accounts.



COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Prior Year Comment

In the prior year, we indicated that the City’s system for tracking and reporting the available sick and vacation
balances is inefficient. The City does not maintain an automated perpetual balance of each employee's sick and
vacation balance. Therefore, the calculation of this accrual at fiscal year-end (and at any time during the year) is
done manually.

These balances are not only essential in the preparation of the City's basic financials statements, but they are
essential in attendance controt,

Current Status
The City is in the process of updating its payroll software to automatically gather this information. However, this
application was not avallable for the current year audit and, consequently, the data was required to be compiled

using an excel spreadsheet.

Continuing Recommendation

We encourage the City to continue to pursue its goal of automating the accumulation and reporting of sick and
vacation accruals.

POLICE DETAIL

Prior Year Comment

in the prior year, we were unable to ohtain support for the police detall amount reported in the general ledger. We
also noted that the balance did not change from previous year. Currently there are no formal reconciliation
nrocedures between the Police Department and the City Auditor’s Office for police detail receivabies. The
summary outstanding balance reported in the general ledger should be reconciled each month to the detail
maintained by the Police Department. Updating and reconciing the general ledger receivable balance {o the
subsidiary ledger is an important control that provides a check and balance on the activity posted to the subsidiary
ledger,

Current Status
We were not provided with supporting documentation for the police detail receivable balance reported on the
generai ledger. The general ledger receivable balance totaled approximately $417,000 and has not changed in

several years.

Continuing Recommendation

We recommend that the City Auditor's Office be provided with monthly reports showing the police detail activity
for the period and that the City Auditor update the general ledger receivable balance to reflect the monthly activity,
Once the activity is recorded, the general ledger receivable balance should be reconciled to the subsidiary
receivable balance maintained by the potice department. Any write-offs should be signed-off and approved at the
proper levels of management,



INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION

Prior Year Comment

tn the prior year, we indicated that the general fund provides services and pays for certain fringe benefits for its
enterprise operations. |t is sound business practice to compiete a cost allocation plan to charge the enterprise
funds for their share of these costs. If a properly approved and supported cost allocation plan is not used to
calculate these charges, then the City is at risk that the enterprise funds are not being charged their fair share of
expenses. The City allocates indirect costs based on percentages that have been utilized for several years. ltis
good husiness practice to periodically review indirect cost allocations to ensure that the rates being applied are
still applicable to the current situation.

Current Status
The City did not update its cost allocation plan in fiscal 2613.

Continuing Recommendation

We continue to recommend that the City develop a cost allccation plan that identifies all fringe benefits and
overhead departments that support each enterprise fund. The plan should include:

= Direct and indirect charges used to calculate the allocable cost of the overhead department.

» The appropriate base to ailocate the specific cost.

« |dentifying costs that can use actual direct charges for specific expenses.

¢ Arequired year-end reconciliation of the estimated budget allocation to the actual results of operations.



CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS



TIMELINESS CF YEAR;END AUDIT DOCUMENTATION
Comment

To comply with generally accepted accounting principies, among other financial information, the City's financial
statements must include fixed assets and year-end accruals for appellate tax board (ATB) and compensated
absence iiabilities, as reguired by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement #34 and Statement #16,
respectively.

The City did not have this information readily available for the year-end audit as they were not provided to us until
February 2014,

Recommendation

We recommend that the City develop a timeline for compietion of all supperting documentaticn needed to compile
the City’s audited financial statements so that the audit can be completed on a timelier basis. We also
recommend that the procedures necessary o prepare this information be documented.

GENERAL LEDGER JOURNAL ENTRIES
Comment

Joumal entries are generally used to record year-end accruals, to reclassify transactions and to record non-cash
transactions. During our audit, we reviewed several of the general ledger journal entries and found that the
supporting documentation was not always readily available. However, the supporting documentation was
eventually compiled and provided.

It is important to maintain supporting documentation with the journal entries in the event that someone retires or is
out of work for an extended period of time. The supporting documentation may be needed o make an internal
decision and may also be needed by an outside agency such as federal, state or independent auditors. Having
supporting documentation readily available and filed numerically with copies of the journal entries will protect the
City in the event that such a situation arises.

Recommendation

We recommend that the journal entries are filed in a central location, by journal entry number, with supporting
documentation attached to each journal entry. If there is no supporting documentation for the journal entry, we
recommend that a memo is written and attached to describe the purpose for the entry.



INFORMATIONAL COMMENTS



OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT ACTUARIALS

Comment

To continue o meet the reporting reguirements of GASB Statement #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, the City must plan to have an updated actuariai study completed
ai least every two years.

For the City of Woburn, this means that an updated actuariat valuation, dated June 30, 2013, wiil have to be
obtained for the fiscal 2014 and 2015 audits.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City complete the process of obtaining an actuarial valuation valid for use in the fiscal
2014 and 2015 audits.

FUTURE GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) STATEMENTS FOR PENSIONS AND
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Comment

The GASB has issued new pronouncements that will significantly affect the accounting and reporting
requirements for Pensions and Qther Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). These new standards will start to phase
in during fiscal year 2014 and will substantially impact the City's financial statements and will also affect the
requirements for accumulating the necessary data to meet the reporting requirements.

The new standards that have been issued and their effective dates are as follows:

s« The GASE issued Statement #65, lfems Previcusly Reported as Assets and Liabififies, which is required
to be implemented in fiscal year 2014,

e The GASB issued Statement #67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an amendment of GASB
Staternent No. 25, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2014,

s+ The GASB issued Statement #68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of
GASE Statement No. 27, which is reguired to be implemented in fiscal year 2615,

The GASB is expected to issue additional standards following #67 & #68 for Pensions, which will similarly affect
accounting and financial reporting for OPEB Plans. The GASB is encouraging earlier application of these
standards. To briefly summarize these new standards —

» GASB #65 will require reporting each of the financial position elements in a separate section in the
statements of financial position. These elements are Assets, Deferred Outfiows, Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows, and Net Position; where assets + deferred inflows — liabilities — deferred inflows = net position.
These new reguirements will affect cerfain aspects of the financial statements currently and they will pave
the way for the new reporting requirements of the new Pension and CPEB standards.

Y

GASB #67 and #68 will substantially change the reporting for pension liabilities and expenses. Changes
in pension fiability will be immediately recognized as pension expense or reported as deferred
outflows/inflows of resources depending on the nature of the changes. Substantial changes to methods
and assumptions used to determine actuarial information for GAAP reporting purposes wilt be required.



Current actuarial methods may continue o be used to determine funding amounts. Employers will report
in their financial statements a nel pension liability (assetl) determined annually as of the fiscal year end.
Net pension liability (asset) equals the fotal pension lighility for the plan net of the plan net position.
Pension liability is the actuarial present value of projected benefits attributed to past service, and plan net
position is the accumulated plan assets net of any financial statement liabilities of the pian,

The City should expect to record significant pension and OPEB liabilities in the future.

Recommendation

While the most significant changes from these GASB'’s do not go into effect until FY2014 and FY2015, we wanted
to make the City aware of the magnitude these changes will have on financial statement reporting and
disclosures. The City should plan to meet with your actuaries and financial advisers as more informaticn
becomes available. You may aiso want to consider how and when this information should be communicated {o
financial statement users.

RESERVE FUND FOR FUTURE PAYMENT OF COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Comment

Effective July 3, 2012, Chapter 40, Section 13D of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL), provides a city, town,
or school district with the ability to establish a reserve fund for the future payment of accrued liabilities for
compensated absences due any employee or full-time officer upon termination of employment.

At June 30, 2013, the City's estimate of this liability totaled 36.9 million. However, the City has recently modified
its buyback policies, in the union agreements, to aliow buybacks on an annual basis. This step was taken to

reduce the unfunded liability.

Recommendation

We commend the City for the actions that were taken to reduce the compensated absence liability and
recommend that the City consider accepting the provisions of this section of the MGL with the goal of
incrementally funding the remaining liability.
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